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Social aspects of the
late-antique village of Shivta
Yizhar Hirschfeld

Shivta {Arabic ez-Sbeita! lies in a remote spot ¢.40 km southwest of Beersheva and ¢.15 km
southeas! of the main roule in anliguity that crossed the Megev to the Sinai;* even today the
site is isolated. This helps account for the fact that it is one of the world's best-preserved late-
antique sites: many walls of houses are preserved to a height of 2-4 m, and the churches stand
to 8-10 m.? The lines of mosl streets are shll discernible, as are the agricultural installations
and cultivated plots on the margins, It has an arid desert climate with an annual rainfall of
less than 100 mum? and lies in the centre of the Corbah valley, which occupies ¢.40 sq. km at an
elevation of 320-360 m asl (fiz. 1) The site hes on tne N banx of one of the valley's upper
tributarics {MNahal Zeithan). A ridge to the northwest (clevation 420 m asl) forms an cHective
barrier against the sand dunes that have encroached from the direction of the coast. The site
itself is buill on a layver of hard crystalline limestone of Turonian age. This layer, 2-3 m thick,
mitirated the effects of earthquakes on the buildings. Below it is a layer of soft limestune that
is easily quartied (and was in antiquity to construct cisterns beneath the housest), Both types of
limestone produced building material for the settlement.

Although the site was probably first selled by Nabatacans in the Early Roman period,
finds from that period are few. Most of the archaealogical evidence relates to the late-antique
(Byzantine), Umayvad and early Abbasid periods (4th-Bth ¢.). Most of the visible structures
seein o have been built in about the late 4th ¢.% and remained in use for three or four cenbories,

1 Fur ity identication and location, see Y, Tsafrr o of, Tabats Tperii Baman: — iwdaen Paloesbin {jeta-
salem 194 2.

2 Following earlier work in the arca by B, Palmer, A, Musil. C. L. Woalley and 1. b Lawrence, and Th,
Wicgand, the first substantial excavatioms at the site by rhe Colt expecition ran for 4 long scasons
[1933-36}, during which the three chu rches, extensive parts of streets, and 18 houges were uncov ered. Im
1936 the expedition house was burnt dowr. and the excavaton daries and most of the finds were lost
(4. Segal, The Hyzantine city of Shivia [Esbeital, Neger Desert, lsraet [BAR 5179, Oxford 1953] & nus).
The Colt expedition then terned %5 attention o MNesszna. For orief repowts on its work at Shivta, see
PEFQS! 68 {1935} 172-51; QDAY 4 (1935} 210-12; 1hid, 5 {1936) 198-54; hid. £ (1938} 138; see also 1
2. Calt, “Castles in Zin ® Archaerlopy 1 (1948} 84-91. Additonal data on excavations in the pencd of
the Bribsh Mandate survive in the archives m the Rockefeller Bluseum, Jerusaler: {file no. 71 Isbesta)
For the architectural elements of the site see A. Segal, Architectyral decoration e Byzantine Shivta,
Megew Desert, Fsrael (BAR $420, Owiord 1988) and 3d., “Ihe 'siable honse’ at Shivia,” Eretz-Isrped 17
{19831 272 81 [Hebrew|; id., "Art at Byzantine Shivta,” in A Schiiler {vd ), Zeen Vilnay wndunw, vl 2
(Jerusalem 1957) 190-03 [Hebrew]; id., “Shivia, a Byzantine town in the Negev Dresert,” [SAH 44 {1585)
31728, R, Rosenthal-Hevinbottom has studied the churches, particulerly the N church: Die Kirditen ven
Subota wnd die Drveiansidenkirchen dps Mahear Osters {Wiesbaden 19827, and ead., Vhe Werth Chiereh apd
monasicry af Sobviez {I'h ). dhss., Hebrew Univ., Jurasalem (474} Tar descrphions of the site see A Negev,
“Sohata,” NEAEHL 4. 1404-10; J. Shereshevski, Byzanttne wrbai settlements in 1w Neger (Beer Sheva
19913 61-51. Newer has also published more than 30 inscripions (A, Negev, The dyzantrre inseriphinnes
af the Meger [Jerusaiem 1981) 47-67) and they nave benefitted from 2 new study by L, T Sepni as part of
her 1997 Ph D, dissertation at Hebrew University.

3 Onits climate and geographical characteristics, see Y. Kedar, “Ancient agriculture at Shivtah in the
Megev,” IE] 7 (1957) 178-8%

4 Seenow Z. Tsek, "The water-supply svslem of Shivtah in the Byzantine perivd,” in C. Ohlig, ¥. Peleg
and T. Tsuk {ed}, Cirra aguariog 1w fzrael (Segburg 2002 £5-5i

5 The excavations by 8. Margalit in the North Chuech {probably the latest of the group) showed thae »
was founded in the late dth or early Sth o PEQ 119 {957} 106-2i, There was a general expansion of
cottlement 10 Palestine oot dth o, and after: of . Hirschfeld, “Furrs and villages in Byzanting Tales-
tine,” DOP 51 (1997} 33-72. The main reasons seem to have boen the stabilization of the frontiers and
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